
QUESTION AND ANSWERS 

In the frames of the tender 

 

Major repair of the educational building on 6 Osvity str., dormitory on 6a Osvity str., educational and office 
building on 9 Pyrogova str., educational buildings on 8/14 Turgenivska str. and sport complex on 3-9 

Turgenivska str.  

 

Q1 Can our organization include the first reporting quarter of 2020 into the average annual 
turnover for the last three years? 
 

A1 The Form «Average Annual Turnover» (see Section ІІІ «Tender Forms») determines that the 
Tenderer “Attaches copies of tax certificates and financial statement (accountant balance 
sheets, including all related explanation notes as well as income reports) for the above 
mentioned years, as well as determines that “ … no statements for partial periods shall be 
accepted ”. Therefore, current year reports cannot be submitted. Section B “Qualification 
Criteria” clause (c) subclause (i) determines that annual average turnover are being calculated 
for the last 3 (three) years.  

 

Q2 Kindly confirm that the proposals from the Tenderer who received protocol and other materials 
of pre-tender meeting WILL NOT be declined only due to absence at the pre-tender meeting? 

A2 According to ITT c.6.7 absence at the pre-tender meeting can be the reason of tenderer`s 
disqualification, though it is the Tender Committee who makes such decision. In addition, 
Tenderer`s site visit to the subject objects can be taken into account.  

 
Q3 Are you planning to provide possibility of tender submission in electronic form due to the 

COVID-19 situation?   
A3 Due to this situation and quarantine measures applied in the country the Tender Committee 

amended the tender opening procedure and specified it in the attached Amendment No 1. 
 
Q4 The conditions of the Tender Documents foresee: «finance reporting history must be audited 

by the certified accountant». 
Due to quarantine auditor companies do not work. Moreover, auditors need much more time 
for carrying out audits for the last three years, than it is foreseen by the Tender Documentation 
for preparation of Tender. Will the tax mark in form of “acceptance receipt” be enough for 
confirmation? 

A4 Due to the situation and quarantine measures applied in the country the Tender Committee 
amended the above-mentioned financial requirements and specified it in the attached 
Amendment No 1. 

 
Q5 Ukrainian tenderers should also attach a completed Form 1DF for the last quarter before 

tender submittal date accompanied with a receipt from respective tax authority; and a Form 
“Tax Declaration for Profit Tax” for each year required above certified by a “wet” stamp of 
respective tax authority. 

 
Tax service does not approve wet stamps recently. A receipt from a tax authority serves as the 
confirmation. Will a tax mark in form of respective “acceptance receipt” be enough for 
confirmation? 



В5 Due to the situation and quarantine measures applied in the country the Tender Committee 
amended the above-mentioned financial requirements and specified it in the attached 
Amendment No 1. 

 
П6 Tender Documentation foresees requirements to Tenderers “Annual Average Turnover…” for 

lots 1, 2, 3. And in case when a Tenderer takes part in more than 1 (one) lot it is necessary to 
submit average turnover of funds. Our company intends to take part in three lots. Is it 
necessary to confirm income or turnover of the indicated amounts in this case? 

В6 Section В «Qualification Criteria», clause (с) subclause (i) indicates that annual average 
turnover for the last 3 (three) years exceeded: 
- for Lot DNPU-L1.1: EUR 800 000 equivalent; 
- for Lot DNPU-L1.2: EUR 700 000 equivalent; 
- for Lot DNPU-L1.3: EUR 5 000 000 equivalent. 
In case of a tenderer bidding for more than one Lot, average annual turnover over the last 3 
(three) years shall exceed the total value set for the respective Lots above. 
 
In this context net income means assssturnover . Explanation of the average annual turnover 
calculation is provided in the Amendment No 1 to the Tender Documents.  
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